


CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Financial Summary

For the year ended 31st March,
BE=ZA=+—-BLEE

MG E

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
—ETRFE —ZEERF —ZTTLF —ZTZTNF |ZBBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET F&ET FHET
RESULTS E
Turnover S 274,662 47,106 52,453 52,002 30,255
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATEF, (BE) 76,017 (28,599) 8,402 24,938 7,197
Taxation TR1B (3,587) (2,879) (2,605) (4,674) (3,616)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERNFESHEA
attributable to equity holders of  FE/EF R
the Company w AL () 72,430 (31,478) 5,797 20,264 3,581
Dividends % 8 - - - - =
At 31st March,
R=B=+—H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
—ETRHF ZEERF —ZTTLF ZTZTNF |ZBEBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FAET FETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEHAE 358,671 330,838 346,432 395,775 413,022
Total liabilities BERTE (27,250) (24,907) (22,037) (24,341) (24,214)
Shareholders’ funds KEES 331,421 305,931 324,395 371,434 388,808
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Chairman’s Statement E/E#4E

Dear Shareholders and Directors,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31st March, 2009 to the
shareholders.

The Group has been stable in its business in manufacturing, distribution
and trading of light source products. Turnover and profit attributable
to shareholders for the year amounted to approximately HK$30.26
million and HK$3.58 million respectively, as compared to turnover and
profit attributable to shareholders approximately HK$52.00 million and
HK$20.26 million respectively of last year.

Whilst market competition in relevant lighting product segments has got
more intense, with the Group’s success on (i) research and development
in its core products among competitors producing the same products, the
production cost of the Group has strong competitive advantage, (ii) cost
control and (iii) unique Tungda brand products, the Group maintains a
competitive and cost advantage and stable gross profit margin.

The Group has been distributor of GE Lighting since 1996 and has been
appointed by GE Lighting as its exclusive distributor for lighting fixtures
in Hong Kong and Macau in January, 2004. The appointment enables the
Group to expand its product offerings to include lighting fixtures and also
symbolizes our successful long term cooperation with GE Lighting.

The Group has been actively seeking capable distributors to expand its
sales and distribution network.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all the
customers, staff and directors for their continuous support, dedication and

contribution to the Group, as well as shareholders and business partners
for their full support and confidence in the Group.

Chu Chien Tung
Chairman

26th June, 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

Operating Results

For the year ended 31st March, 2009, the Group’s turnover was
approximately HK$30.26 million, representing a decrease of approximately
41.80% from HK$52.00 million last year.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31st March, 2009 decreased to
54.36% compared to 61.74% for the same period in 2008. The change
is attributable to the decrease in sales of house brand products and
absorption of un-utilised direct production overhead.

House brand products that usually give higher gross profit margin as
compared to agency brand products accounted for about 74.45% of total
turnover for the year 2008/09 (2007/08: 82.15%).

Other Income and Gain, net

The major component of other income and gain, net approximately
HK$2.60 million was interest income for the year 2009 as compared to
approximately HK$3.69 million for the same period in 2008. The decrease
was accounted by written back of overprovided fees in prior years and
net gain on disposal of non-current assets in the year ended 31st March,
2008.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

The selling expenses, which primarily comprised of delivery and salaries
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$0.63 million and decreased in
line with the business and from savings in exhibition and fairs expenses for
the year ended 31st March, 2009, as compared to approximately HK$1.59
million for the same period in 2008.

The administrative expenses for the year ended 31st March, 2009
comprised primarily of staff remuneration, depreciation, entertainment,
fee for audit services, rental and management fee expenses. The
administrative expenses for the year ended 31st March, 2009 increased to
approximately HK$11.19 million as compared to approximately HK$9.25
million with last year mainly because of the non-recurring expenses
incurred for repairs and maintenance of production equipments and
machineries for the year.

Net Profit

As a result of the factors discussed above and decrease in taxation, the
profits attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31st March, 2009
amounted to approximately HK$3.58 million as compared to approximately
HK$20.26 million for the same period in 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Suspension of Trading in Shares and Investigation by the
Commercial Crime Bureau

Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended on the Stock
Exchange since 29th July, 2004. The management understands and
shares the concern of the shareholders of the Company in relation to the
suspension of share trading. The management had appointed a financial
advisor in January, 2005 and has sought advice and assistance from
various professionals with a view to resume the share trading as soon as
possible.

In order to resume the share trading as soon as possible, the Company has
been actively communicating with relevant section of the Stock Exchange
since January, 2007.

With reference to the Company’s announcement on 16th March, 2005,
officers of the Commercial Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force
(“CCB") have executed a warrant for search and seizure against the
premises of the Group (“CCB Event”).

With reference to the Company’s announcement on 17th January, 2007,
the bail conditions of the three executive directors, Mr. Chu Chien Tung,
Mr. Chu Chick Kei and Mr. Chu Sen Hei, have been lifted and they were
released unconditionally and no charges have been brought against them.

With reference to the Company’s announcement on 3rd April 2009,

(1) the Company received a letter in around November 2008 from the
Stock Exchange in which the Stock Exchange set out conditions
prior to uplifting of the Company’s suspension of trading in shares
pursuant to Rule 9.10 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(2)  the Company has been in contact with the Department of Justice
and understands that the CCB's investigation remains ongoing.

The Company will make further announcements as appropriate for any
further material developments.

Resources are being diverted in order to resume trading in shares and

to handle the CCB Event. The Group’s business and production line
investment development plan is interrupted and has been aborted.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group's shareholders’ funds amounted
to approximately HK$388.81 million (2008: HK$371.43 million). Cash
and cash equivalents was approximately HK$348.69 million as at 31st
March, 2009, compared to HK$327.30 million as at 31st March, 2008.
Increases in cash stemmed primarily from income generated from
operations. The Board believes that the Group has adequate funds to
support its operations and capital expenditures for future expansion and
development.

The Group's gearing ratio, defined as the Group’s total debt to total
equity, was 4.75% (2008: 5.05%).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There were neither significant investment held by the Group nor material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies for
the years ended 31st March, 2009 except as disclosed in note 15 to the
financial statements of the annual report.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group's buildings along with one of the leasehold land and land use
rights in the PRC have been pledged to a bank to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in notes 13 and 14 to the
financial statements of the annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As most of the Group's trading transactions, monetary assets and liabilities
were denominated in Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars, the impact of the foreign exchange exposure of the Group was
considered to be minimal and there was no significant adverse effect on
the normal operations of the Group. As at 31st March, 2009, no related
hedges were made by the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group and the Company had no contingent liabilities as at both 31st
March, 2009 and 2008.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information of the Group is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31st March, 2009, the Group had about 53 full time employees. The
Group’s employees were remunerated according to the nature of their
duty and market trend, with discretionary bonus and benefit of retirement
scheme, share options and necessary training. Total staff costs for the year
amounted to approximately HK$2.74 million (2008: HK$2.53 million).

PROSPECTS

As the Group's products have longer life hours and high energy efficiency.
In addition, more customers are now concerning the importance of
environmental protection, and therefore they are intending to use the
Group's products instead of traditional light source products.

The Group will continue to pursue and focus on its core business of being
a provider of good quality light source products and will use its best

endeavor to maximise return to its shareholders in the years ahead.

The worst situation has been passed, the Group’s management is
optimistic to the future development and prospect of the Group.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management EZLSHREEEER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHU Chien Tung, aged 56, is the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company. He is a member of Political Consultative
Conference of Henan Province, Vice-Chairman of Putian Overseas Chinese
Association. He was awarded “The Outstanding Entrepreneur” in Fujian
Xianyou County. He was appointed as a director of the Company on
19th December, 2001. He is currently a part-time professor of the Faculty
of Light Sources and Illuminating Engineering in Fudan University. Since
the establishment of Tungda Industrial Limited in 1984, Mr. Chu has
participated in manufacturing, trading and sales of lighting sources
products. Mr. Chu is the founder of Tungda Industrial Limited in 1984.

Mr. CHU Chick Kei, aged 51, is the vice chairman and deputy chief
executive officer of the Company. He was appointed as a director of the
Company on 19th December, 2001. He joined Tungda Industrial Limited
in August 1986 and has been engaged in manufacturing, trading, sales,
management and administration. He is the brother of Mr. Chu Chien Tung.

Mr. CHU Sen Hei, aged 29, is a director and the son of Mr. Chu Chien
Tung. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 10th April,
2002. He joined Tungda Industrial Limited in April 2000 and is responsible
for technical development of lighting sources, sales for overseas market
and administration.

Non-Executive Director

Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony, aged 48, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 1st June,
2004. Dr. Fung graduated from Massachusetts Institute of Technology with
dual Bachelor of Science degrees in Chemical Engineering and Chemistry,
and a Master degree in Chemical Engineering Practice. He also holds a
Master degree in Business Administration from The Wharton Business
School of University of Pennsylvania and a Doctoral in Philosophy degree in
Chemical Engineering from the University of Delaware of the United States
("Us”).

Dr. Fung is currently the General Manager of a private investment firm
focusing on healthcare industry in the People’s Republic of China.
Previously, Dr. Fung has extensive management consultancy experience in
financial services, manufacturing, and energy sectors in Asia and US. He is
the holder of 15 US patents on the development of new catalytic materials
and their related petrochemical and refining processes.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management EERSHEEEER

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Lei Bo, aged 46, is an independent non-executive director of
the Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 30th
September, 2003. Mr. Zhu graduated from Tongji University in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") with a doctoral degree in Engineering. Mr.
Zhu had been the General Manager of China Luoyang Float Glass Group
Company Limited, a company established in the PRC and has extensive
experience in production, coordination and technology management. He is
currently a Vice President of China Building Material Industry Association.

Mr. HONG Yong Hwan, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company
on 18th September, 2003. Mr. Hong graduated from National Taiwan
Normal University and Korea University. He had worked as a managing
director for overseas business of Dr. Peng Technology listed in the
Shanghai stock market and for a company investing in mining and
resources in the People’s Republic of China. He presently acts as the chief
executive officer of INZEN Limited listed in the Korean stock market.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHU Qing Chun, aged 41, is the deputy general manager of Light
Power and Tungda Fujian. He graduated from Xiamen University in 1990
with a bachelor’s degree in Economics. Prior to joining the Group in June
2000, he was a deputy general manager of Shanghai Chientung Industrial
Limited, a trading company based in Shanghai, the PRC.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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Corporate Governance Report

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “"CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules which sets out corporate governance principles (the “Principles”)
and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”).

The Company has applied most of the Principles and complied with most
of the Code Provisions as far as possible and practicable except for:

(1) the Code Provision A.2.1 which requires the separation of the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer;

(2) the Code Provision A.4.1 which requires non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election;

(3) the Code Provision B.1.1 which requires the establishment of a
remuneration committee with specific written terms of reference;
and

(4)  the Code Provision C.2.1 which requires at least annually conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control.

An explanation of the deviations is set out at below. The Company will
review its current practice of the Principles and Code Provisions in order to
comply with the requirements of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements of director’s securities
transaction stated in the GEM Listing Rules. All the directors of the
Company have confirmed that they have complied with the requirements
as set out in the GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 31st March, 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING
The Board comprises of six members and their positions are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. CHU Chien Tung
Mr. CHU Chick Kei
Mr. CHU Sen Hei

Non-executive Director
Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. HONG Yong Hwan
Mr. ZHU Lei Bo

Profiles of Directors are set out on pages 11 and 12 of this annual report
for the year ended 31st March, 2009.
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Corporate Governance Report 1B

The Directors, with relevant and sufficient experience and qualification
have exercised due care, fiduciary duties to the significant issues of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Mr. CHU Chien Tung is the
brother of Mr. CHU Chick Kei and the father of Mr. CHU Sen Hei. All other
directors have no relation to each other or all Directors have no business
relation with the Group.

The Directors held four meetings and the attendance of the Directors for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2009 is as follows:

Name of Director Attendance
Mr. CHU Chien Tung 4/4
Mr. CHU Chick Kei 3/4
Mr. CHU Sen Hei 4/4
Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony 3/4
Mr. HONG Yong Hwan 4/4
Mr. ZHU Lei Bo 4/4

The Board may also approve matters by resolution in writing. Information
of material issues, due notice of meeting and minutes of each directors’
meeting have been sent to each of the Directors for their information,
comment and review.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

The Company does not have an officer with the title of “Chief Executive
Officer”. Mr. CHU Chien Tung is responsible for the management of
the Board and strategic development of the Company. Mr. CHU Chick
Kei and Mr. CHU Sen Hei respectively are responsible for the day to day
management of the Group. Mr. CHU Chien Tung is also responsible for
the overall management and decision of the Group. This constitutes
a deviation of the Code Provision of A.2.1. As Mr. CHU Chien Tung
has extensive experience in the industry, the Board considers that the
arrangement is beneficial to the Group as a whole. Despite the aforesaid,
the Board will review such arrangement from time to time and consider
the appointment of a chief executive officer in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the next Annual General Meeting and no contract is
currently in force with them.

The relevant retiring Director has offered himself for election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Board comprises of only two independent non-executive directors
and is not in compliance with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules which
requires, among others, every board of directors must include at least
three independent non-executive directors.

The Company will appoint at least three independent non-executive
directors in order to comply with the relevant requirement of the GEM
Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a remuneration committee, the Board
is authorised by the Shareholders at Annual General Meeting to fix the
remuneration of the Directors whereas a Director shall abstain from voting
in respect of any remuneration and fees paid to his interest. The Company
will arrange for the setting up of a remuneration committee in order to
comply with the Code Provision.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has not conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control as the Board considered that resumption of
trading in shares is needed to be dealt with priority. At the same time, an
effective internal control is one of the important factors for resumption
of trading in shares; therefore, the Company will conduct a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control in order to comply with the
Code Provision.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee’s principal duties are the review and supervision of
the Company’s financial reporting process and internal control system.
The existing Audit Committee comprises only of two Independent Non-
executive Directors and is not in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules which requires, among others, the audit committees must
comprise a minimum of three members.

The Company will arrange to appoint at least three Audit Committee
members in order to comply with the relevant requirement of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report 13

COMPANY SECRETARY

Rule 11.07(2) of the GEM Listing Rules requires the appointment, among
other offices, of a company secretary. The Company has not appointed a
company secretary and is not in compliance with Rule 11.07(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The Company will arrange to appoint a company secretary in order to
comply with the relevant requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination committee of the Company is not considered necessary after
the assessment of the present situation of the Company. The Board will
review the profile of the current Directors and nominate directors (if any)
on a regular basis in order to ensure that the composition of the Board is
capable to fulfill its obligation and responsibility.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement by the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 27
and 28. An amount of HK$480,000 (2008: HK$480,000) for audit services
was charged to the Group’s income statement for the year ended 31st
March, 2009. There was no non-audit service assignment undertaken by
the external auditors during the year.

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and the auditors of the Company also
set out their responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report in the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2009.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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Report of the Directors

The directors present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2009 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 29 of the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 31st March, 2009.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set in note 23 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 32 of the annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st March, 2009, the Company’s reserve available for distribution
as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands amounted to HK$94,913,000. Under the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results of the Group for each of the five years ended
31st March, 2009 is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements during the year in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

There was no movement in the Company's authorised or issued share
capital during the year. Further details in relation to the authorised and
issued share capital of the Company are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors ZBEEMWE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHU Chien Tung (Chairman)
Mr. CHU Chick Kei

Mr. CHU Sen Hei

Non-executive Director
Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. HONG Yong Hwan
Mr. ZHU Lei Bo

In accordance with the Articles 86 and 87 of the Company’'s Articles of
Association, Mr. Zhu Lei Bo shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei has
entered into a service contract with the Company. Particulars of these
contracts, except as indicated, are in all material respects identical and are
set out below:

1. each service contract of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and
Chu Sen Hei is of two years duration commenced on 1st August,
2004 which appointment shall continue after the expiry of the fixed
term until terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than three months’ prior written notice or payment of salary in lieu
thereof, such notice to expire upon the initial term of two years;

2. each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei
is entitled to a monthly salary plus a double pay equivalent to one
month’s salary;

3. each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei is
entitled to such management bonus by reference to the consolidated
net profits of the Group after taxation (“Net Profits”) as the Board
may approve provided that the aggregate amount of management
bonuses payable to all executive directors in respect of any financial
year of the Group shall not exceed 20% of the Net Profits for the
relevant financial year; and

4. each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei
shall abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum in
respect of any resolution of the Board regarding the amount of
annual salary and management bonus payable to himself.
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Report of the Directors EE & &

Mr. Hong Yong Hwan, has entered into a service contract with the
Company. Particulars of the contract are set out below:

1. the service contract of Mr. Hong Yong Hwan is of initial fixed term of
one year commenced on 18th September, 2003 which appointment
shall continue after the expiry of the initial fixed term and either
party may terminate the appointment by giving the other party at
least one month’s notice in writing expiring not earlier than the
initial fixed term of one year; and

2. Mr. Hong Yong Hwan is entitled to a monthly salary.

Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony has entered into a service contract with the
Company. Particulars of the contract are set out below:

1. the service contract of Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony is of initial fixed
term of one year commenced on 1st June, 2004 which appointment
shall continue after the expiry of the initial fixed term and either
party may terminate the appointment by giving the other party at
least one month’s notice in writing expiring not earlier than the
initial fixed term of one year; and

2. Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony is entitled to a monthly salary.

Save as disclosed above, none of the independent non-executive directors
and the non-executive director has entered into any service contract with
the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors has entered into any
service agreements with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

HBERAEEDBARRFLRBEE LD - AHFBEHT
T

1. ARREEZRBEAN_FZT=FNALATN
ARt DZEEEHA—F RUTEETLH
ERESEEE BEEEP—HTRHETELTD
R—ERzEmBMKIERIE MEBREHT
ERMNFEEER —FAREm: &

2. HBRELEBEERAH-

BRBELEEAARNTIRBEE L A BEERT
mF:

. BEBEBLIZRBEONR_FTETOFARA—H
e VFZBEEERA—F RUTEETLHE
mEEEEET EEEP-HRETELTOR
—EAZEmBNRLERLE MBEBZESTF
RMFEEER—FAREW: &

2. KBS EREERARK-
B EXEEEIN BMEBIFNTEERIFNTES
BAREEFTEEMRBEEL -

BAREREEIN GEESEEAR BRI AN E
RAIFTEEMASE AR —F AL IEMEBAELR
B8 OXERERIN) Z RAF %

RAHMRIRAEZERBRDT  2008/09 F#H

19



20

EREWE

Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31st March, 2009, the interests of the directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) and required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by directors, were as
follows:

Long positions
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company and
underlying shares

EERROREBERG ZE R

RIZBZENF=ZRA=+—HB ARAEFRITREH
RgEzBBEAL RARFSEAFBEEE (F
ERESFMMERD ([EHRBEHRD]) EXVER) Z
etn KRB - BEARIEE 5 MR RGIEXVER
FINSA WO HMEARNRA Rz (BRERE
EFLBRERIIBRIGERERRIEXNEERR 218
BHXR)  RARBNRARARIEEZ LB E GG
EI2FFEZECMzEE  HRBEAERLTR
AIFE5 A6 ERESETTES X I ZRECHEAR
AR P2 MmN T

wR
(a) ZARAEREE0O1ETZEERREHERG

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

shares held of the Company

Name of director Capacity e &I HAEATE BT
EEpnE g4 EEREE RAH B
Mr. Chu Chien Tung Held by controlled corporation (Note) 560,000,000 50.7%

RRREE mXEBEE (HiE)

Note:

These shares were held indirectly by Tungda Industrial Limited (“Tungda
Industrial”) through its beneficial interest in the entire issued share capital of
Standard Exceed Limited. Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu
Chun (father of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung and Chu Chick Kei) jointly hold the
entire issued share capital of Tungda Industrial.
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Report of the Directors EE & &

(b) Share options (b) BERE

Number of

Number of underlying

Name of directors Capacity options held shares

BENE &4 FrsERERE HEROEE

Mr. Chu Chien Tung Beneficial owner 1,054,944 1,054,944
KERRF&E EnEAA

Mr. Chu Chick Kei Beneficial owner 1,054,944 1,054,944
KREREE EmlE A

Mr. Chu Sen Hei Beneficial owner 10,549,440 10,549,440
RKEBRLEE EmlBE A

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief executive
officer of the Company and their associates has any interest or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations at 31st March, 2009.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 12th July,
2002, the Board may grant share options to any directors, full time and
part time employees of the Group and the consultant or adviser of the
Group. Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
22 to the financial statements.

No share option is granted or exercised during the year.
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Report of the Directors

A summary of the movements in the Company’s share options during the
year is as follows:

EREWE

RRARBRENFAZEBBALT

Number of share options

BREHE
Closing Grant or
Exercise price At exercised At
price at the date 31st March, during 31st March,
per share of grant 2008 the year 2009
Date of grant Exercisable period sREHR RELRH  R-BBNEF FRRE  R-ZBAE
RAAH RS @ ZWmE =A=1-H g7 =ZB=t-AH
HKS HKS
ET AT
Directors
Ez
Mr. Chu Chien Tung 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
28th November, 2013
RERAE ZFE=F+-fA=+-8 ZER=F+-A-thBE
ZE-ZE+-AZT/\A
Mr. Chu Chick Kei 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
28th November, 2013
REREE ZFE=F+-A=+-8 ZER=E+-A-thBE
ZE-ZE+-AZT/\A
Mr. Chu Sen Hei 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 10,549,440 - 10,549,440
28th November, 2013
KEBEE ZFE=F+-fA-+-8 ZER=F+-A-thBE
ZE-=E+-AZ+/\A
Sub-total /N 12,659,328 - 12,659,328
Employees
k&
3rd October, 2003 22nd October, 2003 - 0.345 0.345 33,140,672 - 33,140,672
21st October, 2013
“EEZETAZH ZEE=E+AZtIRE
ZE-ZETAZt-H
Total 485t 45,800,000 - 45,800,000

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09



Report of the Directors

The directors consider that it is not appropriate to value the share options
on the ground that certain crucial factors for such valuation are variables
which cannot be reasonably and objectively determined. Any such
valuation of the share options based on speculative assumptions in respect
of such variables would not be meaningful and the results thereof may be
misleading to the shareholders of the Company.

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
balance sheet of the Company until such time as the options are exercised,
and no charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of the
value of options granted, if any, in the year. Upon the exercise of the
share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company
as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares
is recorded by the Company in the share premium account. Options which
lapse or are cancelled are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors and chief executive officer
and their associates has any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. None of
the directors of the Company, or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age, had any rights to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group paid rental amounting to HK$108,000 to
Tungda Industrial. Details of such transactions are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EREWE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or
existed during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
At 31st March, 2009, the following substantial shareholders (other than
a director or chief executive officer of the Company) who have interests

F#EE A n,J
FALEIT AT FARERREEAEERERNS
REBDEBZAK -

FERR
RBARRIRE S RAEGIIFE336 FEENELCM
s R_TBEANF=A=+—H BEARAES

or short positions in the shares and underlying shares as recorded in the — S(ITERAEELSN LA = EILER P ARD M 4B B AR 1) oh
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of HHE@IAR :
the SFO:
Long positions e
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company AR TEREE0.01B TS ZER
Number of
issued ordinary
shares held
in the Company Approximate
RAERQFE percentage
e R B
Name of shareholders BRRES BB ZERYE BET DL
Standard Exceed Limited (Note 1) Standard Exceed Limited (#/7#1) 560,000,000 50.7%
Tungda Industrial Limited (Note 1) RARIE(KE)BRAAE (HiE1) 560,000,000 50.7%
Mr. Chu Chien Tung (Note 2) KEREE (HiE2) 560,000,000 50.7%
Ms. Chan Pik Kam (Note 3) REZL L (Hit3) 560,000,000 50.7%

Notes:

Standard Exceed Limited is wholly and beneficially-owned by Tungda Industrial
which in turn is beneficially-owned as to 33.33334% by Mr. Chu Chien Tung,
33.33333% by Mr. Chu Chick Kei and 33.33333% by Mr. Chu Siu Chun. Mr.
Chu Siu Chun has no management role in the Group.

Under Section 336 of the SFO, Mr. Chu Chien Tung is deemed to have
interests in all the shares of the Company which Tungda Industrial has
interests as he is entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting power
at general meeting of Tungda Industrial. The other two shareholders of
Tungda Industrial, namely Messrs. Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun, are not
so deemed as they are not entitled to exercise more than one-third of the
voting power at general meeting of Tungda Industrial.

Ms. Chan Pik Kam is the wife of Mr. Chu Chien Tung. Under Section 336 of
the SFO, she is deemed to have interest in all the shares in which Mr. Chu
Chien Tung is interested.
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, no other person (other than a director or chief
executive officer of the Company) has an interest or a short position in
the shares and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group, in aggregate,
accounted for approximately 79.70% of the Group’s total turnover and
the largest customer accounted for approximately 38.10% of its total
turnover. The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for approximately 67.41% of its total purchases for the year. Purchases
from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 26.09% of its total
purchases.

None of the directors, their respective associates, or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in any of the five largest
customers and the five largest suppliers of the Group for the year ended
31st March, 2009.

All transactions between the Group and its customers were carried out on
normal commercial terms.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, the Board is not aware of any business or interest of
each director, management shareholder and their respective associates
that compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Report of the Directors

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee’s principal duties are the review and supervision of
the Company’s financial reporting process. The existing audit committee
comprises two independent non-executive directors, Mr. Hong Yong Hwan
and Mr. Zhu Lei Bo.

During the year, the audit committee held four meetings and performed
the following duties:

1. reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

2. reviewed the unaudited financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the three months ended 30th June, 2008, for the
six months ended 30th September, 2008 and for the nine months
ended 31st December, 2008.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing
Rules during the year ended 31st March, 2009, except that the Group has
not yet established a remuneration committee, a nomination committee,
the non-executive director and independent non-executive directors of
the Company are not appointed for specific terms and are subject to
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, only two
independent non-executive directors are appointed and the Company
has not conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control during the year and to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. TING HO KWAN & CHAN, CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment, as auditor of the Company. The Company had not
changed its auditor in the proceeding three years,

On behalf of the Board

CHU CHIEN TUNG
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report B3 #Z &8RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TUNGDA INNOVATIVE LIGHTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tungda Innovative Lighting
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 29 to 84, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31st March,
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the agreed terms of the engagement, and for no other
purposes. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report B #Z &R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March, 2009
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

sre Wk

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 #EZ —ETNF=A=+—HILFE

2009 2008

—EZThE ZEENF

Notes HK$000 HK$'000

M it FET FETT

Turnover BEER 6 30,255 52,002

Cost of sales 84 BUAR (13,807) (19,892)

Gross profit EH 16,448 32,110

Other income and gain, net HiW A R F5E 7 2,601 3,686

Selling and distribution costs HERSIHER (633) (1,590)

Administrative expenses THAX (11,187) (9,249)

Operating profit KEHER 8 7,229 24,957

Finance costs BE B AR 9 (32) (19)

Profit before taxation R B Al 0% F 7,197 24,938

Taxation el 10 (3,616) (4,674)
Profit for the year attributable to ARATEERFEABEFEREF

the equity holders of the Company 11 3,581 20,264

Earnings per share BREN
— Basic AR 2 0.32 HK cents &1l | 1.83 HK cents #/1l

The notes on pages 34 to 84 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

FIAEBAA B A IREK — 81D -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31st March, 2000 R—ZEZ N FE=HA=+—H

wREERRE

2009 2008
—ETNEF —EENF
Notes HKS$'000 HK$°000
Bz FET FET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y WENEE 13 44,293 46,907
Leasehold land and land use rights FE T N+ b R4 14 10,369 10,193
54,662 57,100
Current assets REEE
Inventories Y 16 5,295 5,608
Trade and other receivables JE U E 5 5K I8 K H b fE UL BR 3R 17 4,364 5,754
Current tax refundable AEFEEEREBBIE 16 16
Cash and cash equivalents RekReE 18 348,685 327,297
358,360 338,675
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JETE 55 E R B A FE A BR 3K 19 18,033 18,184
Obligation under a finance lease BB E AR
— due within one year — R —F A 20 118 110
Current tax payable REZENTIA 5,711 5,577
23,862 23,871
Net current assets REBEERE 334,498 314,804
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABAE 389,160 371,904
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Obligation under a finance lease BETH & AR 20 352 470
Net assets EEFHE 388,808 371,434
Equity Ex
Share capital AR 21 11,056 11,056
Reserves & 23 377,752 360,378
Total equity EZEE 388,808 371,434

The financial statements on pages 29 to 84 were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June, 2009 and are signed on
its behalf by:

FLIEBAB ZHMEHERER=ZZEENF A JF/\E|
BRESgEREENE YHTIESRKRES

CHU Chien Tung CHU Chick Kei
KEREE KEREE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

BE BE

The notes on pages 34 to 84 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Balance Sheet

As at 31st March, 2009

BERE

RoFEAE=A=+—A

2009 2008
—ETAEF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KB A Bl 15 107,245 108,283
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H {th FE UK BR 5Kk 233 104
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBE&EE 18 50 51
283 155
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H iR 1,559 1,304
Net current liabilities REBEEREE (1,276) (1,149)
Net assets EEFE 105,969 107,134
Equity =
Share capital N 21 11,056 11,056
Reserves G 23 94,913 96,078
Total equity EREE 105,969 107,134

The financial statements on pages 29 to 84 were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June, 2009 and are signed on

its behalf by:

CHU Chien Tung
KEREE
DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 34 to 84 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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DIRECTOR
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" 1 1 'iﬂ A oh ¥ II\%-”Z\
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4F&EmEE)IXR
For the year ended 31st March, 2009 #Z —ETNF=A=+—HILFE

(Note 23) (Note 23)

(Hizt23) (Hizt23)

Share Share Special Translation General  Retained

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RA  ROHEE HHREE EXRE -REE RKREEA L)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 — HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1st April, 2007 RZZEZLFNA—A 11,056 101,670 (2,128) 18,655 17,383 177,759 324,395
Exchange realignment ER AR - - - 26,775 - - 26,775
Profit for the year FRE A - - - - - 20,264 20,264
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEENF=ZA=F+—H 11,056 101,670 (2,128) 45,430 17,383 198,023 371,434
Exchange realignment ERLAE - - - 13,793 - - 13,793
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 3,581 3,581
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZBEAF=ZA=t-H 11,056 101,670 (2,128) 59,223 17,383 201,604 388,808

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st March, 2009 HZ — &=

nﬂ‘\/\fﬁi//w i'%

NEZRA=+—HILEE

2009 2008
ZEBhF ZZTNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation B B B i ) 7,197 24,938
Adjustments for: P
Gain on disposal of property, HEME WER&E
plant and equipment P g - (208)
Interest income ISR PN (2,601) (2,578)
Depreciation and amortisation e R 4,323 5,901
Finance costs Bl & Ak AN 32 19
Operating profit before changes LEEEHAINKLE RN
in working capital 8,951 28,072
Decrease in inventories FER D 476 501
Decrease in trade and other receivables FE W& 5 3R IE f H A FE U
BRFOR 1,087 154
Decrease in trade and other payables FET B 5 5RIE I H M FE
B8R FORL > (695) (661)
Cash generated from operations REEKFRE 9,819 28,066
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid Bt lu:%ﬁﬁ il (3,701) (3,475)
Net cash generated from RETHFREREFH
operating activities 6,118 24,591
Investing activities KRETE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BFELEE
equipment (6) (37)
Sale proceeds on disposal of property, HEME BMEREEZ
plant and equipment Fri8 518 - 360
Deposits refunded for acquisition of W2 BB R &2
property, plant and equipment AT RIE K - 10,758
Interest received B E 2,601 2,578
Net cash generated from REZHMEREFH
investing activities 2,595 13,659
Financing activities A& T B
Interest and finance charges paid B EREE R (32) (19)
Repayment of capital element of BEHEERILHER
a finance lease (110) (218)
Net cash used in financing activities MEZBHABRESFE (142) (237)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents BE&RBRESEEEM 8,571 38,013
Cash and cash equivalents FzReRREEE
at beginning of the year 327,297 265,621
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JE R % 8§/ & 12,817 23,663
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ2BERBALEE (HiE18)
at end of the year (note 18) 348,685 327,297
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 26th July, 2002.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Tungda Industrial
Limited (“Tungda Industrial”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the Group are trading and manufacturing of light source
products. The address of its registered office is Century Yard, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681GT, George Town, Grand
Cayman, British West Indies. The address of the principal place of
business of the Company is Room 1903A, 19th Floor, Nanyang
Plaza, 57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon.

At the request of the Company, the Company’s shares have been
suspended from trading on the Stock Exchange since 29th July,
2004.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS™), which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”). The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 4 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to the
balance sheet date.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interests. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

B 5 R 2R B

BTEBUBREER (#)

BEGFEMAGRM T ETHA RETNEL
B REER - 2B E KRBT IAR PR
RAKEAGTHHE BEAERBELEERS
SRS E  MEASEEFNE AT S
MM BHRRNTZE  FHNM S -

TEEHBREE

(a) HEEE
REAMBHRREBEARBREAENE
RABEHEEH 2 B8wK-

(b) KIEAF
MEAREASEEREFEVE R EE
BRZFMBER —REFBBLEIRE
BBE - EXEAEEREEN S &
B BAATEXA LGB EERERE
ZHEERZEDTER-

MEAREEEHRER TAKEE AR
FHREA AR WRIEHIEL LS AT AR
CPN:

AEBRBUBEFERAKEMRKE
ZHBRBINER - WERARNZZE B
FAEEEZAFERE MBTZERATA
MFEXSAEZRE MEERRET
WEEBR KA -EBEA BRES K
BZAHREE PIREZABREIARE
BE-ORKBERREQATFEEED
B MBAGFREMNDBBRRERS  WE
BN HER th A 5% B A5 P URRE 2 AT B % B
EZERIIDERE o W WRE A KR P
WENBA AR FEEZRATEE AIEH
ERMERAERERAER -

RAHMRIRAEZERBRDT  2008/09 F#H

35



36

Notes to the Financial Statements

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are lump sum upfront
payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-occupied
properties. Leasehold land and land use rights relating to
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis to the
income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 20 years or the unexpired
term of lease, whichever

is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 20%

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09

3

B 5 R R M

TESTBERBE (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

MELR (&)

KERRZENRG BHRERHZKRE
RS THE BRI P RUERE
AFMEEEELTME SRRERER
NTHE-MBRARZEFRRCEEE
BRTIEER]  AREREREEFIERRZ
BE 2

RARBZEERBRA RBARZ
BE TR AEMRER RFHRERRT
fR-MBARZEBEIRARRIREKR R
FEM R B 2 B DI Bk -

HMELTHR T ERE

ME i o 4 30 fF AR N A BAFEA
ERZMENRMESHALNTOHEE-
MELRTiFERENEBZEENE
AR A B R A H R BN AL B AR0E 8
WH AW E R

M- BERRE
WME - BE RREIIRE L RAR R IT
EREMRFBEBRAK-

WME- -BERREOFTERTIIGAA
FHNBERATE BERABHEEER
SEE(WA) :

gF 205 sz i o 7E BA

(ABEEAB%E)
B KB REE 20%
HEMEEE 50%
= R i 2s 10%
B 20%



Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of the asset, calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, is included in the income
statement in the period the item is derecognised.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the
leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the assets to the Group. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

(i)  Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised in
the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. The corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, on the finance leases are recorded
as obligations under finance leases. All assets held
under finance leases are classified as property, plant
and equipment, except for those properties held to
earn rental income which are classified as investment
property, in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

)

(9)

Leases (Continued)

(i)  Finance leases (Continued)
Depreciation and impairment loss are calculated and
recognised in the same manner as the depreciation and
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment as set
out in note 3(d), except for the estimated useful lives
cannot exceed the relevant lease terms, if shorter.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities. The finance charge is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

(ii) Operating leases
Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments under
an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
Net realised value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and, after initial recognition, at amortised cost less any
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts, except
for the following receivables:

(i) interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at cost less any allowance
for impairment of bad and doubtful debts; and

(i) short-term receivables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are
measured at their original invoiced amount less any
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)
(i)

Impairment of assets

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- a significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtors.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivables included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- leasehold land and land use rights classified as
being held under an operating lease; and

- investments in subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash flows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i)

0)

(k)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with bank and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and, after initial recognition, at amortised cost, except for the
following payables:

(i)  short-term payables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are
measured at their original invoiced amount; and

(i) interest free loans from related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at cost.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

0}

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews and assesses
the recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets and the
future taxable profit to determine whether any recognised
deferred tax assets should be derecognised, and any
unrecognised deferred tax assets should be recognised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions vest with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are members of the Central Pension Scheme operated
by the Chinese government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their covered payroll to
the Central Pension Scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation for the Group with respect to the Central Pension
Scheme is the required contributions, which are charged to the
income statement in the year to which they relate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sales of good is recognised when the
Group has delivered the goods to the customers and the
customer has accepted the goods together with the risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods. Revenue is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies (Continued)

(2) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expense are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(3) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the
purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. For example, segment assets may include inventories,
trade receivables and property, plant and equipment. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on the similar terms as those available to other
external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the year to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing borrowings, tax balances, corporate
and financing expenses.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

THE ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are first

effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting

period of the Group as follows:

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)

HK(FRIC) = Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC) = Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

HK(IFRIC) = Int 14

Note 3 summarise the accounting policies of the Company, after the
adoption of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group. The application of these new and revised HKFRS had
no material effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is required.

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective and which have not been early adopted
in these financial statements (see note 30).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in
the financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS. The
assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. While the management reviews their
judgements, estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual
results will seldom equal to the estimates.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
to the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group's net book value of property, plant and equipment
as at 31st March, 2009 was approximately HK$44,293,000.
The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of one to
ten years, and after taking into account of their estimated
residual values. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group's property, plant
and equipment. Management will increase the depreciation
expense where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less allowance for impairment, if any,
of financial assets and financial liabilities with a maturity of
less than one year, are a reasonable approximation of their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.
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6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 EXHERsBEHR
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EZThF —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Turnover EER

Sales of light source product 4 & R E m 30,255 52,002

(a) Business segments (a) EKDE

The Group is organised into 2 operating divisions —
manufacturing and trading of house brand light source
products and the distribution of agency brand light source
products. These two operating divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its primary segment information.

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

below:

AREBREBEEHEAXMAELT A5
mERRERNRERE S ER ALK
EmE N RERNDERS A LMER
BEFI DA KBS E T2 0 HMERHEL R

& P i

B

House brand

g o

4

Agency brand

B O BMERZWT

light source light source
products products
G mhE KRERME  Consolidated
KR E M HRE M ®ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FHET FHET
Segment revenue 2 Uk =
For the year ended BE-—FENF
31st March, 2009 A=A —HIFE
Turnover EEE 22,525 7,730 30,255
Results E¥
Segment results DEFELE 14,619 1,829 16,448
Unallocated corporate expenses, APDBERARIRE
net of other income B E AU A (11,820)
Interest income, net of FEUWA -
finance costs B B & A AN 2,569
Profit before taxation B H2 A1 5 ) 7,197
Taxation TIB (3,616)
Profit for the year F A A 3,581
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Notes to the Financial Statements

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

6 EXBERIVER £
() XBoE(#E)

House brand

Agency brand

B 75 R R BT

light source light source
products products
A5 mkE RESE  Consolidated
KRER FIRE m ®E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EERAE
At 31st March, 2009 RZFEFNF
=A=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 60,693 2,803 63,496
Unallocated corporate assets ROMARIEE 349,526
Consolidated total assets HREAEMRE 413,022
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities nEBE 19,802 1,406 21,208
Unallocated corporate liabilities RKOBERBIAE 3,006
Consolidated total liabilities REBRERHE 24,214
House brand Agency brand
light source light source
products products
BB KRERE  Unallocated Consolidated
RBREM RBRER ROE me
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Other information HihEs
For the year ended HE-ZFEZTNF
31st March, 2009 ZA=F—HIEFE
Additions of property, NEWME BEREE
plant and equipment 6 - - 6
Depreciation of property, WE - BB REETE
plant and equipment 3,954 - 138 4,092
Amortisation of leasehold TAE 30 o A {6 PR A 8
land and land use rights 231 - - 231

RAHMRIRAEZERBRDT  2008/09 F#H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

6

Ly P Es Ed il

A

AN

EXRBERIBER (£)
() EBoE(#&)

House brand

Agency brand

light source light source
products products
g @ RERE  Consolidated
KR E M@ FRE R wEe
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Segment revenue 2 P Uk
For the year ended HE-_FTENF=H
31st March, 2008 =+—HIFFE
Turnover EEE 42,724 9,278 52,002
Results E¥
Segment results DEFELE 30,175 1,935 32,110
Unallocated corporate expenses, ROBARIFAEZ -
net of other income kR E MU A (9,731)
Interest income, net of FBEUWA -
finance costs Bk g & A AN 2,559
Profit before taxation B 5 B i A 24,938
Taxation B8 (4,674)
Profit for the year F A% F 20,264
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Notes to the Financial Statements

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

(a) Business segments (Continued)

EXRERTBER (&)

() XBoE(#E)

House brand

Agency brand

B 75 R R B

light source light source
products products
A5 mkE RESE  Consolidated
KRER HRER ®E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EERERE
At 31st March, 2008 N EFEEF
=A=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 63,762 3,792 67,554
Unallocated corporate assets ROMARIEE 328,221
Consolidated total assets HREAEMRE 395,775
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities NEHBE 19,110 1,891 21,001
Unallocated corporate liabilities RKOBERBIAE 3,340
Consolidated total liabilities REBRERHE 24,341
House brand Agency brand
light source light source
products products
EGE KRERE  Unallocated Consolidated
RBREM RRER KOE me
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Other information Hin &R
For the year ended HE—ZFZNF
31st March, 2008 ZA=F—HIEFE
Additions of property, plant NEWME BEREE
and equipment 4 - 648 652
Depreciation of property, plant %% - BE K& EINE
and equipment 5,456 - 223 5,679
Amortisation of leasehold land &+ # [ + 4 {55 4 4 85
and land use rights 222 - - 222
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6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09

Geographical segments
The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong
Kong. The following table provides an analysis of the Group's

Ly pvEsEd il

AN

]IE|E||/

EXRBERIBER (&)

(b)

i & 2 #P

AEERPEREEMM

BE T &

FIAKEZRWETHE D (TREMR

turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of E) B EEEBON
the goods:

2009 2008
—EENEF ZETN\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong FEABRERE 1 16
Hong Kong e 7,681 9,888
Asia and Europe oM K BOM 11,586 21,602
North America 1t ZEM 10,987 20,496
30,255 52,002

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets and additions to property, plant and equipment analysed
by the geographical areas in which the assets are located:

NTRREEMESRITNDREER
HEMANEME BERREDT:

Carrying amount
of consolidated
segment assets

Additions of
property, plant
and equipment

REDMEEREME REYE- BERRE
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEBAE | ZZET)N\F | ZBBhE | ZZTN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFET FET T
Hong Kong BB 4,046 5,273 - 648
The PRC, HE -
excluding Hong Kong TEEEE 408,976 390,502 6 4
413,022 395,775 6 652




AY

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7RIz

OTHER INCOME AND GAIN, NET 7 HttWARWKRE FHE
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEAEF ZEENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income H b U A
Bank interest income RITHLEWA 2,601 2,578
Sundry income I A - 900
2,601 3,478
Gain, net W 58
Gain on disposal of property, REWE BB RS2 W
plant and equipment - 208
2,601 3,686
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8 OPERATING PROFIT

AN

Ly pvEsEd il

]IE|E||/

8 Kenw

The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EEAEF ZEENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Operating profit has been arrived B N T RS N B
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note a) BE=Me (Hita)
— Fees - e - -
— Other emoluments —H A% 773 473
— Retirement benefits contributions — R RAE B 5K 43 10
816 483
Other staff costs Hih B8 TR 1,971 2,057
Retirement benefits contributions H i 8 TR R4 F 3k
for other staff 150 188
Total staff costs 8 T A 2,937 2,728
Auditors’ remuneration % ELRD B &
— Current year —AKFEE 480 450
— Underprovision in prior year —RTFEERETR 30 -
Cost of inventories recognised FEKRAERIERL
as an expense 13,807 19,892
Depreciation and amortisation on =% 3
— owned assets —-BEEE 3,962 5,556
— leased asset —HEEE 130 123
— leasehold land and land use rights —TMHE i fo (e A 231 222
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREFHELHEERS
land and buildings 681 715
Bad debts written off 12 R 1 8 101 34
Exchange loss, net EN EE  FE 98 511

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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(i)

Notes to the Financial Statements BF 7&K

]|E|E||/

OPERATING PROFIT (Continued) 8 Kegaw (&)
Note (a): Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees Wiita) BBEREBEEHEEHS
Directors’ emoluments (i) EEH2
Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year HE_ZThF=-A=+—HFEI
ended 31st March, 2009 were as follows: EEMEFBOT:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Directors’ in kind  contributions
Name of directors fees 2= 45 EIREF Total
BEEgA EEHe HiEH =T &It st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Chu Chien Tung KEERLE - 121 11 132
Mr. Chu Chick Kei KL E - 352 11 363
Mr. Chu Sen Hei KEBEE - 108 11 119
Non-executive Director FEBITEE
Dr. Fung Shui Lun, SIS
Anthony — 96 5 101
Independent non- BUHNTESE
executive Directors
Mr. Hong Yong Hwan BB A - 96 5 101
Mr. Zhu Lei Bo BEIR A - - - -
- 773 43 816
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8

OPERATING PROFIT (Continued) 8
Note (a): Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees
(Continued)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year

Ly pvEsEd il

AN

]IE|E||/

eEmA ()
fMitle) EERBEFHEAMS (#)

(i) EFHE(E)
BE_FTN\F=A=1T—HFEL

ended 31st March, 2008 were as follows: EEMEFBUOT:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Directors’ in kind contributions
Name of directors fees e 2R RKER] Total
EEHA E=-¥ ok E A2 F FTEIf “Et
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Chu Chien Tung KEREE - 181 - 181
Mr. Chu Chick Kei KERILE - - - -
Mr. Chu Sen Hei KRB L - 100 - 100
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Dr. Fung Shui Lun, Bk
Anthony - 96 5 101
Independent non- BIHMITEFE
executive Directors
Mr. Hong Yong Hwan HER AL - 96 5 101
Mr. Zhu Lei Bo ER A - - - -
_ 473 10 483

Each of Mr. Chu Chien Tung, Mr. Chu Chick Kei and Mr. Chu
Sen Hei has waived respectively the amount approximately
HK$1,829,000 (2008: HK$1,769,000), HK$1,338,000 (2008:
HK$1,690,000) and HK$542,000 (2008: HK$550,000) of
remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2009.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8 OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

Note (a): Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees
(Continued)

(ii)

Employees” emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2008:
one) director, details of whose emoluments are set out in
above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2008: four)

B 75 R 2R B

8 ®Kami#)
fMitle) EERBEFEAMS (£)

(ii)

ESH %

FfussHFMALRE -2 (ZEZ
NE—RB)EF ZFALZMEFH
BHEHRN X BB (Z2FN\F:

individuals are as follows: mE)ALZBMemT:
2009 2008
—EENF —TENF
HK$000 HK$°'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e kER 754 663

Retirement benefits scheme R ARAE R T B

contributions 36 29
790 692

The number of employee whose remuneration fell within the
following band were as follows:

HeETBENZETABMT:

Number of employees

BEAR
2009 2008
—Z22NEF —TT)\F
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 0/& 7L 21,000,000/ 7T 4 4

Except for the above, there were no share options granted to
employees under the Company’s share option scheme during
the year (2008: Nil).

No emoluments were paid or payable to the above highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial years
ended 31st March, 2009 and 31st March, 2008.

B Bl E N FAARQE W EARIEE
R E R E TR BT MERE (=
TENF &)

REBEE-_ZTNF=-A=+—8HE=
ZENF=ZA=F+—BLUBFE"
AEBEWENBAER LR EEHEIA
TR ERMEIEAMBERER 2 42
SRR EE -
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9  FINANCE COSTS 9 MMERE
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank overdrafts RITE L F B - 1
Finance charges BE R 32 18
32 19
10 TAXATION 10 BiE
(a)  Taxation in the income statement represents: (a) WEmEkAFIBNRE:
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EEhF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current tax: AFEEHIE:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ERET 3,965 4,674
Overprovision in respect of FFERERE
previous year (349) -
3,616 4,674

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as

the Group has sustained a tax loss for both years.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC,
provision for PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based on
a statutory rate of 25% (2008: 12% to 25%) of the assessable

profits of the companies within the Group.
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B 75 R 2R B

10 TAXATION (Continued) 10 BIE (%)
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) MEXHBEBEBRAERGEFE 2T EF
applicable tax rates: fil 2 ¥ -
The Group
rEHE
2009 2008
—EEAF ZET)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Profit before taxation Rk 7 A1 i ) 7,197 24,938
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of — IRAHIFTEFI TR 16.5% & 2 Fi1H
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) (ZZEZENF:17.5%) 1,188 4,364
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PRI MBHAEZ 2 B2
for tax purposes 790 13
Tax effect of income not assessable BEARBWAZB BT E
for tax purposes = (38)
Tax effect of temporary difference REEABREREZB o MBHE
unrecognised for the year (195) 38
Decrease in opening deferred tax PR A A O0R D B A Y ER W)
asset resulting from a decrease BRI I8 & =R
in tax rate - 32
Tax effect of tax losses unrecognised REEAERBMBEEE MG E
for the year 720 328
Overprovision in respect of FFERERE
previous year (349) -
Effect of different tax rates of REMBERELE ZMBARZ
subsidiaries operating TRREZE
in other jurisdiction 1,348 (241)
Others Hth 114 178
Taxation charge MIBZH 3,616 4,674

1"

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in both years
as the amount involved is insignificant.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY 11
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company

to the extent of the loss of HK$1,165,000 (2008: a profit of
HK$280,000).

ARF S

MRS RBBEL AER RAFE R E
FEHERERETHIAER-

RAREEFEABRGREERR
BEAEBEAFERFIENRAR

H?HM&%%WJ)\ BRFAEE A1, 165,000?.%73
— T )\ 4 5 F280,000/8 7T ) ©
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the following FRAN TR T EERTE -
data:
2009 2008
—EENF ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Earnings 2R
Profit for the year for the purposes of HAEERERNREERF
basic earnings per share RE[Z i A 3,581 20,264
Number of shares RHEE
Number of ordinary shares in issue A EBREREFNZ
for the purpose of BEITERRK
basic earnings per share 1,105,600,000 1,105,600,000
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the years HRARAREBE_ZZTNEFR_ZFEZTNF=
ended 31st March, 2009 and 2008 as the Company did not have A=+—RIFENEEMEEEE N 2 K%

any dilutive potential shares outstanding in both years.

AR MmARRAER R LR SRS
BF-
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 M¥E -BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures Plant
Leasehold and Leasehold and Motor
buildings equipment improvements  machinery vehicles Total
HERT HERRHE HENEEE BERES AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET TET FET TET FET FET
The Group L1
Cost J‘MX
At 1st April, 2007 “ETHENAF-H 15,683 1,683 1,433 52,456 949 72,204
Exchange realignment ERSFW 1,300 44 - 2,309 34 3,687
Additions NE - - - 4 648 652
Disposal HE - - - - (535) (535)
At 31st March, 2008 “ZEEN\FZA=1-H 16,983 1,727 1,433 54,769 1,096 76,008
Exchange realignment ERHE 666 22 - 1,707 18 2,413
Additions NE - 6 - - - 6
Disposal HE - (135) (1,433) - - (1,568)
At 31st March, 2009 RZBBA$ZA=t-H 17,649 1,620 - 56,476 1,114 76,859
Depreciation and impairment & K&
At 1st April, 2007 RN-_ZT+FME—A 2,847 1,399 1,433 16,177 545 22,401
Exchange realignment ERLAE 236 29 - 1,119 20 1,404
Charge for the year ERZH 837 175 - 4,463 204 5,679
Written back on disposal i E B ] - - - - (383) (383)
At 31st March, 2008 ZZTN\E=R=1-H 3,920 1,603 1,433 21,759 386 29,101
Exchange realignment ERLAE 154 18 - 756 13 941
Charge for the year ERZH 869 82 - 2,927 214 4,092
Written back on disposal i E B o] - (135) (1,433) - - (1,568)
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZBEAF=A=1-H 4,943 1,568 - 25,442 613 32,566
Carrying value FHE
At 31st March, 2009 RZBBASZA=1-H 12,706 52 - 31,034 501 44,293
At 315t March, 2008 R-2ENFZA=1-A 13,063 124 - 33,010 710 46,907
Carrying value of leased asset  ELERAE
At 31st March, 2009 R-ZEEAF=A=1-H - - - - 475 475
At 31st March, 2008 —ZENEZR=T—H - - - - 605 605

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are held under
leasehold land use rights for 50 years expiring in 2053. The buildings
have been pledged to a bank to secure general banking facilities to

the Group.

At the balance sheet date, the directors conducted a review of the
Group's plant and machinery and considered that all of them were
worth at least their carrying values at 31st March, 2009.

AEBURTBEERAZET  HREBER/HS0FZ
THERERE R_TRA=FER- - LEFE
ERARE B PTERITRE MK -

REER BEFCHAEEZEEMERETR
uTIn RTARE kKR EEELEFRNE

R-ZBZNF=A=1+—HZKHEE"
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63



AN

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf &Rz 3

14 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 14 FHELTHRTHhFERRE
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEAEF ZZTTNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost B 7R
At beginning of the year F9) 11,127 10,275
Exchange realignment E R T 437 852
At end of the year FR 11,564 11,127
Accumulated amortisation Rt HH
At beginning of the year F9) 934 657
Exchange realignment JE R TR 30 55
Amortisation for the year INF S 231 222
At end of the year FR 1,195 934
Net book value RMEFE
At end of the year FR 10,369 10,193

The leasehold land and land use rights are situated in the PRC and
are held for 50 years expiring between 2053 and 2056.

One of the leasehold land and land use right at net book value of
HK$7,901,000 (2008: HK$7,767,000) has been pledged to a bank to
secure general banking facilities to the Group.

BAUNTEEAZHET MR T ERES
HRER SR =R SR FHEER A

504 °

Hoh — g BRE % (E A7,901,0008 7L (ZEZ N
17,767,000 1) 2 & + Hb & 1 b 5 AR A
EEAKREEFTERITRIE AT -

15 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RHBAERER
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JELEMRRD - LA AE 3,128 3,128
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG BT /BB R Bl FR A 104,117 105,155
107,245 108,283

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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15 RERRER (&)
FEUFH A R R A ARE B R RRE FER

15 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The amounts due from subsidiaries which are neither past due nor

impaired are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayments. In the opinion of the directors, the amounts due will
not be settled within 12 months from the balance sheet date and are

therefore reclassified as non-current.

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at 31st March, 2009 are set

e YEEREZEEGRK - BEERRZ
RUFETEESEA T @A ZRBE B
BEHNERIERD -

ARBIZHMBARIRN-_ZEZNE=A=+—H

out as follows: ZEIEIT
Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
share capital/ nominal value of

Place of registered issued share capital/

incorporation/ capital registered capital held

establishment Place of BETR by the Company
Name of company HMmKEL/ operation #BEREK/ AKRRPAFRBERTRE/ Principal activities
NAER R % T BRI AMRAEEED L TEXH

Directly Indirectly
E# &

Bright Growth Resources Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100 - Investment holding

HEREIHS B (E REER
Bright World Resources Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$4 100 - Investment holding

HEREIHS B 4ETT REER
Direct Intelligent Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100 - Dormant

HEREIHS £ (E TE
Ultra Modern Technology Limited*  British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$2 100 - Investment holding

HEREIHS B 2ETT REER
Sunpower Technology Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100 - Investment holding
AR RER AR HERELHS £ (E REER
Tungda Electrical & Lighting Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4 - 100 Trading of light

Limited (“Tungda Electrical”)* BE 0 4% T source products
RABERAFRAR BEEXRER
([RREE])"

RAHMRIRAEZERBRDT  2008/09 F#H
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

A5 R R BT o

15 RERRER (#)

Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
share capital/ nominal value of
Place of registered issued share capital/
incorporation/ capital registered capital held
establishment Place of BETR by the Company
Name of company MR, operation HBRRA/ KDRFBERTRES Principal activities
DEAER Bt T AR A AMRAEEED L TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# &
Light Power (Shenzhen) PRC PRC HK$10,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited* H H 10,000,000/ 7T trading of light
K2 NRECRI) BRA R source products
HAEREEXARER
Tungda Lighting (Fujian) PRC PRC RMB27,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited 23 H AR trading of light
("Tungda Fujian”)* 27,000,0007T source products
RARH(BR)BERAA HEREEXRER
([RAER]) >
Putian Riwei Lighting Electrical PRC PRC US$312,546 - 100 Dormant
Equipment Company Limited* i B 312,546 T )
ERTARRASEER LA
Note: BT

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at 31st March,

2009 or at any time during the year.

# Private companies with limited liability.

* Wholly foreign-invested enterprise with limited liability.

RIZZZAF=ZA=+-BXFREARRE HEE

B R BB EMNHREEBRBEES -

# BRE AR E R A]

* BREFR) S| B E DR F -
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INVENTORIES 16 FE
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—ZZThEF —TTN\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FEL
Raw materials, at cost AR R ANE 2,734 2,627
Finished goods, at cost BIRK an - IR A E 2,561 2,981
5,295 5,608

At 31st March, 2009 and 2008, there were no inventories stated at
net realisable value.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17 BRESZREREMERERR

RIBZNFR-ZTZNF=ZA=1t—H #E
HFET R

The Group
rEH

2009 2008

—EBENF —EENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables EWE 5 HE 1,001 1,532
Other receivables, deposits and HAab U BR3K ~ R& MIBII RIB

prepayments 3,363 4,222

4,364 5,754

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 days
to its trade customers and keeps monitoring its outstanding trade
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management of the Group.

AEE-—RETHESEPFHARIORNEE
B YemidERzZEEHE - BERETEEH
= BB H R 2 FE R IR -
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, included in
trade and other receivables is as follows:

AN

]IE|E||/

17 EWRESREREMEWERR (&)

AEBEFTARKE S AL EKRERAZ
JEWE 5 IAZREE DT

The Group
AEE

2009 2008

—EZhF —EENF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Three months or less —@AR 889 1,389
More than three months ZH =1 AELHRNEA

but less than six months 80 128

More than six months ZRANEABLR—F

but less than one year 32 13

More than one year ZR—F - 2

1,001 1,532

As at 31st March, 2009, trade receivables of HK$502,000 (2008:
HK$701,000) were past due but not impaired. These related to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in their credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as

RZEENF=A=+—H BEAHETERE
2 FEURE 5 T8 /&502,0008 70 (ZTT)\4F ¢
701,000 7C) WV EASEEBERIFLLHE 2
FEIRFAEB-BEBILR SREHREH
BRZEERELDRERE AR EEE=S
IEEK“E Mz & &R DR B BEUK

cALEWER L EABIFTEECMERR B
%%%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ@?r

follows:
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Three months or less past due BH AR =8 A 413 612
One year or less but over BEH=EAE—F
three months past due 89 87
Over one year past due BMEZ R —F - 2
502 701
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 HekALEE
The Group The Company
rEH ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EThF —ETNF —EEhF —EENF
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRERE 348,685 327,297 50 51

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which are ranging from
0.36% to 0.72% (2008: 0.72% to 0.81%) per annum.

IRITEBE R 2 EAEF0.36%E0.72% (=
TENF 0.72%20.81% ) 2B FRFHE -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 BNEZRERAEMENERR
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables JET & 53R 1,556 2,036
Other payables and accrued charges HiENERRETER 16,477 16,148
18,033 18,184
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. BECZEEH-KRAB/IOK-
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables is as follows: AREBZENESRIBZEREOTET
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Three months or less “EAA 906 1,288
More than three months ZR=ABLHEAR
but less than six months 497 588
More than six months ZRANEAEBIR—F
but less than one year 3 18
More than one year ZR—F 150 142
1,556 2,036
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20 OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 20 RIEMHERE
At 31st March, 2009, the Group had an obligation under a finance RZBZNF=ZA=1+—H AEERERENR
lease repayable, i.e. minimum lease payments, as follows: ETHraBEHESLBERERABANT

The Group
rEH
2009 2008
ZEBhF ZTTNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amounts payable FES 5RIA
Within one year —FR 142 142
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF REEEME 381 523
Total minimum lease payments XK R B 523 665
Future finance lease charges ARBEHERZ (53) (85)
Present value of total minimum HEHSBERE
lease payments 470 580
The present value of finance lease NIk b=
obligation is due as follows: MEMEREZTRE:
Within one year —FR 118 110
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF BEEBEME 352 470
470 580
Falling due within one year included FARBEER —F R H
in current liabilities (118) (110)
352 470

The Group leases a motor vehicle under finance lease arrangement
for an initial period of 5 years. The leased motor vehicle secures the

above lease obligation.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09
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SHARE CAPITAL 21 R
Number of Nominal
Class shares value Amount
il R4 EE H{E &8
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Authorised:
JEE
At 1st April, 2007, 31st March, 2008 Ordinary 5,000,000,000 0.01 50,000
and 31st March, 2009
R-_ZEZLFNA—B —FEENF=A=1+—H TR
rMZFEENF=ZRAR=+—H
Issued and fully paid:
BEETREE -
At 1st April, 2007, 31st March, 2008 Ordinary 1,105,600,000 0.01 11,056
and 31st March, 2009
RZZEE+LFWNA—A TN NF=A=+—H Rl
—EZAF=ZA=+—H
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 22 BRESTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
12th July, 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible persons, including the directors of the Group, full time
and part time employees of the Group and the consultants or
advisers of the Group. Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of the
directors may grant share options to the eligible persons to subscribe
for shares in the Company. Options granted must be taken up within
a period of 28 days from the date of options granted and upon
payment of HK$1 as the consideration for the options granted.
Unless otherwise terminated or altered, the Scheme will remain in
force for a period of ten years.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme together with shares previously issued
pursuant to options exercised under the Scheme shall not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time
and the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any one eligible person in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time.

ARBR_ZZ_FL A+ - BRABRAE
2 ([5t8)) SERBERAL BEARF
EE FAEEEBEGRBRERERASE ZHRE
Rk ERERERBIRE - REFE EFF
AREERALTRTARBEARRR RN 2BK
o BRELARROBRERRES —+N\R
HiREA AR EMERBRERASN BT
ZRE-BRIERITRIEIAERERTIN 5 EHR
TERNER-

RIBFF BT RER D 2 BRSO EE £
R ER ST AT RIBET 81T B AR M # 1T 2 X
) PMEEBARRAREHEITRAI0% MR
EA+ZEAMEAREREA-—RAaEBRAL
RHZBRAEMRS Rz BmEB LR RITSE
BARRAKDHTRA1% -
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22 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 22

The subscription price shall be determined by the board of directors
and notified to the eligible persons and shall be at least the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares on
the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options
held by employees (including directors) and the movements in such
holdings during the year ended 31st March, 2009:

AN

BIRRREST S (#)

REBEERHESET THNEEERAT A
PEERUAT=EdREE : (VBB WK
WA REEZEREEZE R (ZAVEARSAH)
TERIZEIR 2 T B+ (B 22 FT B 3R R FT3R A% 19
CEEZREZEREEANARR S BEEER
ZEHINTE RGIDRHEE -

TREBEEHEZE-_TTNF=ZA=Z+—HIEFE
NEE (BEES)MEALBREZFER
ZEBBREZEE):

Outstanding Exercised or  Outstanding

at granted at
Exercise 31.3.2008 during 31.3.2009
price Exercisable R-ZENF the year R-ZEZThF
Date of grant per share period =HA=+-—H FRfTE =A=t+—8H
= BRITHEE TEHEE i R AT REH e R AT
HK$
BT
Employees 3.10.2003 0.345 22.10.2003-21.10.2013 33,140,672 - 33,140,672
=]
Directors
=
Mr. Chu Chien Tung 21.11.2003 0.452 29.11.2003-28.11.2013 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
RER
Mr. Chu Chick Kei 21.11.2003 0.452 29.11.2003-28.11.2013 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
KR
Mr. Chu Sen Hei 21.11.2003 0.452 29.11.2003-28.11.2013 10,549,440 - 10,549,440
PN
45,800,000 - 45,800,000
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23 RESERVES

The Group

(@) Pursuant to the relevant accounting rules and regulations
applicable to foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
not less than 10% of its profit after taxation to the general
reserve fund until the balance of such fund has reached
50% of their respective registered capital. The balances of
the general reserve fund cannot be reduced except where
approval is obtained from the relevant PRC authority to set off
accumulated losses or increase capital.

B 75 R 2R B

23 f#1E
AEM
(@) BEEANTBERIZIERECECS

et AR LR NEE S BN E A A
BAEBIRE M D I0% B = — R
B HEEZESETERREMBRARZ50%
A1k BRIFHEE B P B M R M P (E IR 3
REBRIE A TR ERD —K
REEs T

(b) The special reserve represents the difference between the (b)y HERIFEBIEFTUEENE AR 2 B mE R
nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and BBERNEER ST _FL AT &R
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued for the EHRREMETARRIROEAERZ =
acquisition under the group reorganisation of the Group took o
place in July, 2002.

The Company KAF

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B3 E ZitEE BEr
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

At 1st April, 2007 R-ZZEZTLFMA—H 101,669 (5,871) 95,798

Profit for the year F RN - 280 280

At 31st March, 2008 RZZEZENF=ZA=+—H 101,669 (5,591) 96,078

Loss for the year FAEE - (1,165) (1,165)

At 31st March, 2009 R-ZEZBAF=A=+—H 101,669 (6,756) 94,913

The Company’'s reserves available for distribution represent the
net amount of share premium and accumulated losses. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of
the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and/or
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the date on which distribution or dividend, the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends
can be distributed out of the share premium and retained profits
of the Company. As at 31st March, 2009, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution amounted to approximately HK$94,913,000
(2008: HK$96,078,000).

AN

Az A D IRFEHERODBEENRRER

ZERE -REMEBRERRE NARZRMiE
ErHARRER DRSO SRS EAZARR
AEBRERARMEAR,SEBERMA 2 RSR
R ARRERED KSR SR  NARMAER
HEEBBETNIMEN ZEE -REEARQ

AlzAEBEREAE

BB A AR R R 5 B

REBFNFHEN - R -_TEAE=A=+—8"
ARAFZ a2 R FEEL 594,913,000 T (=
T E )\ : 96,078,000/ 7T ) °

RAH M RRBERBRDH
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24

25

LEASE COMMITMENTS 24
As at the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

B 5 R R M

BN EE
REZ R AEBEREE B LI REFHTAE
WELHAONATHEEIBEMND B % RER
SHRENT

The Group
rEH

2009 2008
—EEREF —ET)\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 285 408
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF PREEEME - 109
285 517

The operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and factories. Leases are
generally negotiated for a term of one to two years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25
Details of the Group’s significant transactions with the following
related party during the year are as follows:

KEHNESEAEERETRAEDERK
FRANZEE HO—RZ-—EMFHARE-

BMEALRS
AREBTHEALRERRITZEAZ S
ZEEMT

The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EBENF —ZET)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Ultimate holding company: BEER AR
Rental expenses HeMXZ 108 108
Purchases BE - 24

Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun (father
of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung and Chu Chick Kei) jointly hold the
entire issued share capital of Tungda Industrial Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had not entered into a finance lease
arrangement in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (2008: HK$615,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions
to MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
members of the Central Pension Scheme operated by the Chinese
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their covered payroll to the Central Pension Scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with respect to
the Central Pension Scheme is the required contributions, which are
charged to the income statement in the year to which they relate.

During the year, the total cost of retirement benefits contributions
charged to the income statement of HK$104,000 (2008:
HK$121,000) represents contributions to the scheme made by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the respective schemes. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employer to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

26
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B 75 R 2R B

TEFRERS
FAAEETERBENE BELERE (=
TT)\F 16150008 )l VR EHE LB

RARE R E

AEBEREMAEERARERIBHEAESE
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XAANER BAKEEEDRAFE REZR
Beitd BIRHEEREASBRABRIIZE
EHERAFZBES M - A EERZARTESD
AR EZEFERRERESFEEL A

= (4 Eh
wHHF

h RIS AR B8 Ty BT AT AT 2 R
RRETEIKE - B R BARUET SIMER - 5ER
REEBFEETEOL - KERABZTRRIAK
EET B2 — M AE T A HRETR
EFERzWEmE 2 HEER -

FAFARZRZEREFNERAK AR A
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28 £®MTH

materially different from their fair values as at 31st March,

2008 and 2009.

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008/09

(a) Categories of financial instruments () &RMIADE
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE | ZZT)\F | ZBEAE | ZZ2T)N\E
Notes HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Wit FET FET FET FET
Assets per balance sheet EEAEBERZEE
Amounts due from e P B 2 73 IA
subsidiaries 15 - - 104,117 105,155
Trade receivables Y E 5 3 E 17 1,001 1,532 - -
Other receivables, deposits H A EUWERF - & Rk
and prepayments TE A 17 3,363 4,222 233 104
Cash and cash equivalents R&NEESE 18 348,685 327,297 50 51
Total loans and receivables B3 & BRI A 353,049 333,051 104,400 105,310
The Group The Company
rEE KAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAE | ZTT)\F | ZBBAE | ZTT)N\HF
Notes HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz FET FET FHET TFET
Liabilities per balance sheet BEBEXRZEE
Trade payables N E 5B 19 1,556 2,036 = -
Other payables and HoAth JE N BR R
accrued charges [EETE A 19 16,477 16,148 1,559 1,304
Obligation under BMEEEAE
a finance lease 20 470 580 - -
Total financial liabilities EEEK A E
at amortised cost BERmAR 18,503 18,764 1,559 1,304
All the above financial instruments are carried at amounts not NEFrEemMITAEZBER-_ZTNFK

TERNF=RA=+—HZATEEES

RER
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising in the normal course
of its business and financial instruments. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i)  Market risk
- Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB"”). Currency risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. In addition, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. This currency
exposure is managed primarily through sourcing
raw material denominated in the same currency.

There are no significant monetary balances held
by the Group companies as at 31st March, 2009
that are denominated in a non-functional currency.
Currency risk arises on account of monetary assets
and liabilities being denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency, however this is
not material to the Group as a whole. Differences
resulting from the translation of financial
statements into the Group’s presentation currency
are not taken into consideration.

- Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises from cash at
banks. Bank savings interest received at variable
interest rates that expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk.

The Group's finance lease obligation was
transacted and arranged at fixed rates. However, as
the amount that exposes the fair value interest-rate
risk is not significant, in consequence, no material
exposure on fair value interest-rate risk is expected.
Even that, the Group closely monitors the fair value
fluctuation of the finance lease obligation in case
of significant increase in interest rate is foreseen.

AY

28 &®IA#E)

(b)

BREBREEERREE
AEFBE-REBBEREBIAD IR
ZEPHRE : mEAR (BEIMNERR
MEREREERRR) EERR MR
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(i) HHEEE
—  SNEEE
AEERTREE LB TmAE
EEINERR EFEZEAA
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BREETZEERS O
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ZHREFE M BARE
AR SN BB ST R B AT P
M 2 INEE B3R B KROEHR -
I E R T E 2B BN
HRASEIEZ R EER -

RZZZANF=A=+—8"
AEEBETHERARALKRFTAH
FEEBERBER 2EKX
SNEE AEBR o ASETHREE R IR
BEKNEBLEERAGSE
KEINERBREAREALTE
R-APBREREL B BAEHE
EREWAEIAZEZRLER
EHEAR-

- FERR
AEBZAXREBRRERITZ
BeFR e ARBIF B =
WEMERITERAE S48 E
BASIRSRENKER -

REEZBERGAENIRE
EMEFBIERH L -BA
RF R A FEER X R R
BEATEXN BEAERF
BEMNEER EEERKR-#
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28 £WTIA(#)

78

rate financial assets had been 1% higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$3,482,000
(2008: HK3,267,000) higher/lower. No sensitivity
analysis for the Group’s exposure to fair value
interest rate risk arising from financial liabilities
is prepared since the management’s assessment
of reasonably changes in value of amount is
insignificant.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
changes in interest rate represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates in that date over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date.

The analysis was performed on the same basis for
2008.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BMEEKBEEBEEZRIEXK (£Z)
(Continued)
(i)  Market risk (Continued) (i) TR (&)
—  Interest rate risk (Continued) - FIEEE (&)
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
ioka FET FET
Floating-rate financial assets 8 F R & E
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEEE 18 348,685 327,297
Fixed-rate financial liabilites RBEIEHMZEX 4B &
Finance lease obligation & TS AR 20 (470) (580)
Net interest-bearing assets STREEFE 348,215 326,717
Sensitivity analysis V ¢
At 31st March, 2009, if interest rates on floating- 75/‘ —EZENF=ZA=+—

fﬁmhz@bﬂ BB EE W
%‘Ti‘ﬂu/m BAZ—
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@“%ﬁfﬁ%T\“ﬁ
FENRBEAGERS K
#93,482,000%8 L (ZZEZ N
% 13,267,000 7C) cHRE
BEFHBENSEZ(LES
KER  E W\ AEE R
ﬁ?f%’l%ﬁLﬁkE’]ﬂﬁ@ﬂ?%@

B 1E H SR E DT

N ESBESTZEETBRR
FEEHBENEEARER
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PR M E 2T
;&ﬁEiTifﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
RN RES-

T N\F 2D TIRERR
T



Notes to the Financial Statements

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (Continued)

- Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any equity securities
risk or commodity price risk.

The Company is exposed to other price risk in
respect of its investments in subsidiaries. The
sensitivity analysis to price risk in relation to the
investments in subsidiaries cannot be reliably
determined due to numerous uncertainties
regarding the future development of these
subsidiaries.

Credit risk
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amount of the trade and other
receivables included in the balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The Group has policy in place to
ensure that sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The Group's
historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible trade and other receivables has been made
in the income statement. Further quantitative disclosure
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are set out in note 17.

The credit risk on liquid funds is considered negligible,
since the counterparties are reputable banks with good
quality external credit ratings.

B 75 R 2R B
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
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AN

i+

28 &WIA#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MKEBREEBEEREE (&)
(i) Liquidity risk (i) FHEELELE
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEERNERNSMHIETERRS
responsible for their own cash management, including B - BIEANABIER S ABHEH
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the RENMESERANEZTEH RS
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject FEROEEEBERNIENEE A
to approval by the parent company’s board when the MERAREERMEFAIEE - A%
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of B2 BT E BB IR B R TE AR
authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor PEEF R UBRALRFEHES
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure RELNFERARRRAN RS E
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its EHEE-
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TERFAIREEEREBENEE
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's HItE B A A EAMR - L TIARIR & KUK AL
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual RRene (BEFAGHOMNETE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments BIM BT SN F Eh A = - AR
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based BEZEHBITOMNE)  LAERAREEH
on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the AR ERN R xFEHE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
Total Less than
contracted 1 year
Total undiscounted or payable Between Between
carrying cash flow on demand 1to2 2to5
amount EHAREE IR-FH years years
REE HeRELAE RERKHEE —-ZMFRA —EZ1§R
HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2009 —EEAF
Trade payables & B S5 IE 1,556 1,556 1,556 - -
Other payables and H & BR R
accrued charges [T & A 16,477 16,477 16,477 - -
Obligation under a BMEMERE
finance lease 470 523 142 142 239
18,503 18,556 18,175 142 239
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B 75 R 2R B

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28 SRTIE(#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MKEBREEBEEREE (&)
(Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) nEBELmEE (&)
Total Less than
contracted 1 year
Total  undiscounted or payable Between Between
carrying cash flow on demand 1102 2t05
amount  AAIARHE PR —Fk years years
REHE Ren2fE RERREERE —ZmFAN Z—Z1FRK
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2008 —TT)NF
Trade payables R E 55 2,036 2,036 2,036 - -
Other payables and Hh R ERR K
accrued charges [EETE A 16,148 16,148 16,148 - -
Obligation under AW EAE
a finance lease 580 665 142 142 381
18,764 18,849 18,326 142 381
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 EXEBER

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively reviews and manages its capital structure in the
light of changes in economic conditions so as to maintain a sound
capital position and also manages capital by regularly monitoring its
current and expected liquidity requirements rather than using debt
to equity ratio analysis.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to either
internally or externally imposed capital requirements.

AEEEREACEERERIREARERSR
FEKE BEASBRRRERORY REMESR

B AT e B 2 2 & A BB LRI
AR A -

AEERELEBANEEREBRINLERE
AR AR RIFE AR - I 5F B B H A
HREARHESER URREEAEBL XS
i e
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B ARREMHIR
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,
2009
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31st March, 2009 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or
amended disclosures in the financial statements:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs’

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements’
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs?
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?
HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation’

HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible hedged items*

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate’

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments’

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,
2009 (Continued)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & Embedded Derivatives®
HKAS 39

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) = Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HK(IFRIC) = Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate’
HK(IFRIC) = Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation”

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5,effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009,
1st July, 2009 and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

° Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June, 2009

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October, 2008

8 Effective for transtfers on or after 1st July, 2009
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30

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,
2009 (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the Group's first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1st July, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised)
will affect the accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary. HKAS 1 (Revised) will prohibit
the presentation of items of income and expenses (i.e. non-owner
changes in equity) in the statement of changes in equity, requiring
“non-owner changes in equity” to be presented separately from
owner changes in equity. All non-owner changes in equity will be
required to be shown in a performance statement, but entitles
can choose whether to present one performance statement (the
statement of comprehensive income) or two statements (the
consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive
income). The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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